BYLAWS

OF

GILBERT TIGER LACROSSE TEAM, ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

Board of Directors

Section 1. Number, Qualification, Election and Term of Office. The Board of Directors shall consist of THREE (3) or more members. The Board of Directors will have the power to alter its size from time to time and to fill any vacancies which may occur in its membership. Each director set forth in the Articles of Incorporation shall serve for the period of one year, or until a new Director has been elected and qualified. A director may be re-elected to successive terms. The Corporation's directors will be elected from the group of nominees nominated by the Nominating Committee as hereinafter established and by a majority vote of immediate members of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. <u>Vacancies and Resignation</u>. In case of any vacancy in the Board of Directors through death, resignation, disqualification, increase in number, or other cause, a majority of the remaining directors, by affirmative vote of a majority thereof, may elect a successor to hold office for the unexpired portion of the term of the director whose place shall be vacant and until the election and qualification of his successor. Any director of the corporation may resign by giving a written notice to the President or Secretary, which resignation shall be effective on the date specified in the notice, or, if no date is specified, upon its acceptance by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. <u>Powers and Duties</u>. The Board of Directors shall have general power to manage and control the activities and property of the corporation, subject to the limitations and prohibitions set forth in the Articles of Incorporation. The Board shall also have the power to employ or discharge a staff executive director upon majority vote of the Board, with or without cause, and in accordance with any employment contract for such person.

Section 4. <u>Place of Meeting</u>. The Board of Directors may hold their meetings at such place or places within or without the State of Arizona as the Board may from time to time determine.

Section 5. <u>Annual Meeting</u>. The annual meeting of the directors of the corporation shall be held at the principal office of the corporation or at such other place as shall be set forth in the notice of meeting on the fourth Wednesday of June of each year, commencing June 22, 2010, or on such other date as the Board of Directors may determine, for the purpose of electing Directors and Officers, and for the transaction of such other business as may be brought the meetings.

Section 6. <u>Regular Meetings: Notice</u>. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be not less frequently than annually, at such time and place as may be determined by the Board, and thereupon no notice of such regular meeting need be given.

Section 7. Special Meetings: Notice. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at any time and place upon the call of the President and must be called by the President on receipt of a written request of any two Directors. Notice of the time, place and purpose of every special meeting of the Board shall be given to each Director by the President or Secretary either by mail, personally, email, or telephone at least three days before the meeting.

Section 8. <u>Waiver of notice of Meeting</u>. Notice of special meeting of the Board of Directors need not be given to any director who shall attend such meeting in person or shall participate in such meeting or who shall, before or after such meeting, waive notice in writing.

Section 9. Quorum. A majority of the Directors in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but if at any meeting of the Board there shall be less than such quorum, the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is obtained. No notice shall be necessary for any such adjourned meeting except that statement at the meeting which is adjourned.

Section 10. Attendance; Termination of Membership. Membership on the Board of Directors may be terminated, at the discretion of the Executive Committee, following the unexcused absence of a member from three consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors. Any absence shall be deemed unexcused, provided such notice of the meeting has been given as may be required by these Bylaws, unless adequate excuse by absent member has been presented to the Secretary, who shall enter such excuse upon records of the Board of Directors.

Section 11. <u>Organization</u>. Every meeting of the Board of Directors shall be presided over by the President. In the absence of the President, a presiding officer shall be chosen by the Directors present. The Secretary of the corporation shall act as Secretary of the meeting, but, in his or her absence, the presiding officer may appoint any person to act as Secretary of the meeting.

Section 12. <u>Consents</u>. Whenever the vote of Directors is required or permitted to be taken at a meeting thereof in connection with any corporate action, the meeting and the vote of directors may be dispensed with if all the directors shall consent in writing to such corporate actions being taken.

Section 13. Action Without Meeting. Unless otherwise restricted by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, any act required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board or committee.

ARTICLE II

Officers

Section 1. <u>Number</u>. The Officers of the corporation shall be a President, one or more Vice Presidents, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other Officers as may be appointed from time to time by the Board of Directors. No person may hold more than one office in the corporation.

Section 2. <u>Election, Qualification and Term of Office</u>. The Officers of the corporation shall be chosen annually and will serve until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors. Officers elected at an annual meeting will assume their duties upon election.

Section 3. Other Officers and Agents. The Board of Directors may appoint from time to time such other Officers or Agents as it shall deem necessary, each of whom shall hold office during the pleasure of the Board, and have such authority and perform such duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

Section 4. Removal and Resignation. Any Officer or Agent of the corporation may be removed by the Board of Directors or may resign by giving written notice to the President or Secretary, which resignation shall be effective on the date specified in the notice or, if no date specified, upon it's acceptance by the Board of Directors.

Section 5. <u>President: Powers and Duties</u>. The President shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general charges of activities of the corporation and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors. He or she may sign, in the name of the corporation, all authorized contracts, documents, checks and bonds or other obligations.

Section 6. <u>Vice President: Powers and Duties</u>. In the absence of the President, the Vice President shall assume and exercise all the powers of the President. The Vice President or Vice Presidents shall perform such duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may prescribe.

Section 7. Secretary: Powers and Duties. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings in books proper for that purpose. The Secretary shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the corporation. The Secretary may sign in the name of the corporation, all authorized contracts, documents, checks, bonds or other obligations. The Secretary shall have charge of the corporate books and papers and shall make all such corporate records available for inspection as required by law.

Section 8. <u>Assistant Secretary</u>. The Board of Directors may appoint one or more Assistant Secretaries who shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

Section 9. Treasurer: Powers and Duties. The Treasurer under the direction of the Board of Directors shall have custody of all funds and assets of the corporation. The Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer or person designated by the Board of Directors shall endorse on behalf of the corporation for collection checks, notes and other obligations and shall deposit the same to the credit of the corporation in a bank or banks designated by the Board of Directors. Any bank or banks used by the corporation must be banks insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Board of Directors may also authorize the use of Federally Insured savings and loan institutions for savings and/or checking. The Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, or other person designated by the Board of Directors shall sign all receipts and vouchers for payments made to the corporation. The Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, or other person designated by the Board of Directors may sign in the name of the corporation, all authorized contracts, documents, checks, bonds and other obligations. The Treasurer shall keep books of accounts of the financial business and affairs of the corporation and shall render a statement of the corporate accounts and records to the Board of Directors at a meeting thereof whenever so required. The Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, or other person designated by the Board of Directors shall exhibit all accounts and records to any director upon reasonable request and shall make all such records available for inspection as required by law.

Section 10. <u>Assistant Treasurer</u>. The Board of Directors may appoint one or more Assistant Treasurers who shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE III

Contracts, Checks, Drafts, Bank Accounts

Section 1. <u>Contracts</u>. Any contract or instrument necessary for the business of the corporation may be signed by the President, or by any other officers authorized by the Board of Directors, and attested by the Secretary.

Section 2. <u>Bank Accounts</u>. All funds of the corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select, or as may be selected by any Officer or Officers, Agent or Agents, of the corporation.

Section 3. <u>Checks, Drafts, Etc.</u> All checks, drafts, or orders for payment of money, and all notes and other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the corporation shall be signed by such Officer or Officers, or person or persons, as shall from time to time be authorized so to do by resolution of the Board of Directors. Two authorized signatures shall be required on all expenditures of the corporation over \$5,000.00.

ARTICLE IV

Committees

Section 1. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of the following Officers; the President, the Vice President, the Secretary, and the Treasurer of the corporation. The Executive Committee shall meet at the call of the President. The Executive Committee shall exercise all of the powers of the Board of Directors during the intervals between meetings of the Board, provided that the Executive Committee cannot modify any action taken by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Advisory Committee. The Board of Directors may elect an Advisory Committee comprised of persons able and willing to give guidance and advice to the directors in carrying out the purposes for which the corporation is formed. Members of the Advisory Committee may concurrently be members of the Board of Directors, but an Advisory Committee member who is not also a director shall have no vote at meetings of the Board of Directors; and any annual, regular, or special meeting of the Board of Directors may be held without notice to Advisory Committee members who are not also directors. The number and tenure of the members of Advisory Committee shall be as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors, which may remove any such member without cause.

Section 3. Nominating Committee. A Nominating Committee of five persons shall be appointed annually by the President. Members of the Nominating Committee and directors of the corporation shall be reported to the annual meeting of the Board of Directors, at which time further nominations may be made from the Board members. The Nominating Committee may also propose nominees for vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Other Committees. The President, may with the approval of the Board of Directors, appoint such other committees as the directors may deem necessary or advisable to carry on the business of the corporation. The President shall be a member ex officio of all committees, with the sole exception of the Nominating Committee.

ARTICLE V

Seal

The corporation need not adopt a seal. If a corporate seal is used, it shall be circular in form with the name of the corporation and the state and year of incorporation appearing therein.

ARTICLE VI

Amendments

The Board of Directors may amend or change the Bylaws of the corporation by affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Board members present and voting and constituting a quorum at any annual, regular or special meeting when the notice or waiver of notice of that meeting contains the amendments or changes proposed.

This undersigned, as Secretary, does hereby certify that the Bylaws as above set forth were duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the corporation after due and proper notice at a meeting held the $\frac{12 4 16}{12}$ day of $\frac{12 4 16}{12}$, 2010.
Dated this 24th day of AUGUST, 2010. Secretary